
Town of Ayer 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Ayer Town Hall 
1 Main Street 

Ayer, MA 01432 

Wednesday_N_o\Lemb_er 161 2022 

6__;o_o_eM 
Remote Participation Meeting Agenda 

,1111111111 

/' 

1111111111 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic, in accordance with Chapter 22 of the Acts of 2022, suspending certain provisions of the 
Open Meeting Law (OML), public bodies otherwise governed by the OML are temporarily relieved from the requirement that 
meetings be held in public places, open and physically accessible to the public, so long as measures are taken to ensure public 
access to the bodies' deliberations " through adequate, alternative means." This meeting will be live on Zoom. The public may 
participate remotely by joining Zoom (Meeting ID# 857 9728 7177) or by calling (312-626-6799). For additional information about 
remote participation, please contact Carly Antonellis, Assistant Town Manager at atm@ayer.ma.us or 978-772-8220 ext. 100 prior 
to the meeting. 

6:oo PM .CallJ:o_Qr:der 

Ap_proval__Qf Age_oda 

e_u_blicJ:Learing-=-8PPJi_cat_io{Lfor a_Varian,e - Nasoya E.o_ods_USA,_LL_C_. 
1 New England Way (Filed October 28, 2 0 22) 

Public Hearing - ARR.lica_t.i.o_nJ_or__a \Lariance - Jeffrey E.__Greco_amLAndre_a_L_. 
{.:i_rec_Q 
37 Sandy Pond Road (Filed October 28, 2022) 

Co__n_tioued Public Hearing - AppJkatkm foLa_Comprebensive Permit 
( MGL.A,oB, SeJ:tions ~Q::.2 3)-1Leighb_orho_od_of_Aff or:__dableJ:I ousJng, Inc. 
65 Fitchburg Road (Filed June 24, 2022) 

Applicat ion Materials can be found at: ayer.ma.us/zoning-board-appeals/pages/ayer-commons
proposed-comprehensive-permit4ob 

AppLOYalQf Meeting Minutes 
October 19, 2022 

Adjournrnj?nt 

The next regularly scheduled ZBA Meeting is Wednesday December 21, 2022 at 6:oo PM 
via remote participation. 



[Kl~ N~V~1~2! ~w 
. TOWN OF AYER 
'~~.... .. TOWN CLERK 

/O:fJ!)t2m ff!!) 

Town of Ayer 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Public Hearing Notice 

" '""''"'"'' ,, .. ,,,,,, .... , 

) 

1t1111111 

The Ayer ZBA will conduct a remote public hearing at 6:oo PM on Wednesday November 16, 

2022 regarding an application by Nasoya Foods USA, LLC., for property located at 1 New 

England Way Ayer, MA. The applicant is seeking a Variance pursuant to Ayer Zoning Bylaw 

Section 6.2 to allow for the construction of a portion of a building to a height of 75ft where 

40ft is allowed. For Zoom/Call-In information please contact sbenoit@ayec.01a.us or 978-772-

8220 x114. 

Advertised November 2, 2022 and November 9, 2022, Lowe// Sun. 



Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, PC. 
Thomas A. Gibbons, Esq. 
tgibbons(iv.tgibbonslaw.com 
Licensed to practice in MA & NH 

Emily R. Langlais, Esq. 
elanglais(tv.tgibbonslaw.com 
Licensed to practice in IvlA 

www.t2.ibbonslaw.com 
21 Park Street 

Ayer, MA 01432 
Telephone: (978)772-2284 
Facsimile: (978)772-0802 

October 28, 2022 

Susan Copeland, Town Clerk 
Ayer Town Hall 
1 Main Street 
Ayer, MA 01432 

RE: 1 New England Way, Ayer, MA 01432 
OUR FILE NO.: 22-8009 

Dear Ms. Copeland, 

Kyle J. Croteau, Esq. 
kcroteau(a),tgibbonslaw.com 
Licensed to practice in MA 

~~ O~T ~}2! ~@ 
TOWN OF AYER 
TOWN CLERK 

/~'1~ 

Pursuant to MGL Ch 40A § 15, please accept for filing on behalf of the Ayer Zoning 
Board of Appeals, the application for Nasoya Foods USA, LLC for a variance to allow 
for the construction of a portion of a building to a height of 75 feet when 40 feet is 
allowed at 1 New England Way, Ayer, Massachusetts. Please find attached the following 
documentation: 

• An original and a copy of a completed application and a ce1iified list of a abutters 
for a hearing for the Town of Ayer Zoning Board of Appeals, thirteen (13) copies 
of a three (3) page plan set, and a 24' x 3 6' copy of the three (3) page plan set, 

• A check in the amount of One Hundred Sixty Five Dollars ($165.00) for filing, 
• A check in the amount of Seventy-Four Dollars ($74.00) for publishing. 

We respectfully request a public hearing before the Zoning Board of Appeals at 
the November 16, 2022 meeting. If you have any questions or concerns regarding this 
matter, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely yours, 

~ 
Thomas A. Gibbons, Esq. 

TAG/df 
\\GLSVR\Office Share\LOT AG 2020\ZONING\Nasoya Foods USA, LLC ( I New England Way, Ayer) #22-8009\ZBA app to city 
letter.doc 



Town of Ayer 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APPLICATION FOR A HEARING 

Name of Applicant: Nasoya Foods USA, LLC 
(Full Name) 

1 New England Way, Ayer, MA 01432 

(Address) 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, P.C. - 978-772-2284 
(Phone Number) 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A Gibbons, P.C. - tgibbons@tgibbonslaw.com 

(Email Address) 

Applicant is: X Owner ___ Tenant __ Licensee __ Prospective Buyer* 
*If you are a tenant, licensee or prospective buyer please include a letter from the property owner 
acknowledging the application with the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

The name and address of each holder or legal title to the land which is the subject of 
this petition (list as it appears on the Deed): 

Nasoya Foods USA, LLC 

Location of Property: 

1 New England Way, Ayer, MA 01432 

Assessor's Map _1_7 ___ _ Parcel 18 --- Land Size 12.12 acres 

Zoning District: A-1 A-2 GR GB DB LI CD MUT HCS 
Circle One 

Registry of Deeds Book 67233 Page 207 

Aquifer Protection Overlay District ( circle one) Zone I ( Zone II) N/A 

2 



The undersigned hereby petitions the Town of Ayer Zoning Board of Appeals to vary the 
terms of the Zoning Bylaws for the following purpose: 

X A VARIANCE from the requirements of the Town of Ayer Zoning Bylaws 

A SPECIAL PERM IT for a specific use which is subject the approval of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

A SPECIAL PERMIT to expand, alter, or change a non-conforming use or 
structure. 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL (i.e. Building Inspector Decision) 

Did you request a building permit from the Town of Ayer Building Inspector? _N_o __ _ 

If yes, were you denied a permit by the Town of Ayer Building Inspector? _N_I_A __ 
If you were denied a permit, please attach a copy of the decision from Building Commissioner's Office. 

State briefly the reasons for application and include the appropriate citation(s) from 
the Ayer Zoning Bylaw: 

Seeking a variance from the Ayer Zoning Bylaw Section 6.2 to allow for the construction of a portion 

of a building to a height of 75 feet when 40 feet is allowed. 

Date: 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, P.C. - 978-772-2284 

(Daytime Phone Number) 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, P.C. - tgibbons@tgibbonslaw.com 

(Email) 

3 



✓ 
✓4 

GRAPHIC S(~Al.E' 

-...~ 
\11/n:IT) 

1 meh ~ •n rl 

/ 

=-~--~- --~-:~:~.: --;:· _:.: :,~ J- :::::.M•:_._ =--~ 
CCP'l"R!GHT {C) by KELLY ENGINEERING GROUP, INC 

Ali R1qr1•~ t,~:;,,cal•J 

s:.:.'.!:;- _,---,.- _-_,",!::-;...,,.!:~;-: ~~~. -·,,_, ,; ~- ~,---1 

----:. :--·:::~, .. -;.f:~-~s:riafin... JriiiuJ --~-~-_.-:~~,.'.L_,.1lf -

- ___ -.-.,_. ___ _ 

s··-••• 

i' 
i~ 

~ 
,~1 
tt 

, L0T,,2E, 

-----'-~--

,:., 

//"''.J,.'/.,C: .'.!:/ !1111', 

---.__ 

---

y 
I i/ 
I ( ; \ 

/~ ,,, ,~L---~~1~~:rf 
/ I , I 

· .. ~':7:,l. 

I 

; :~::I½-~: ~;·~~_i•:':__,,_ ~L-· 
·:---:-,+g,,~,-- .-;- ' .:-; ~4 
- ' ':- ', ' /;-;,:;· ,..__'-"< 

11 ~.-1 -- ~I ,-c- /~·1/, '\..'\ ,.._\, 
\ _I! ,.,, _ :,'./ ~::✓ / ;/. :f(,,v 
\ /L~,··: ,.-_;.,\,;:- .ff;. 

, "f, I ~• :" // ~-
-'. :-r--- "::··✓,,, ·_-(;.<~ 

--, '1 / -- / t, M!'' 
\ /,Y\l~;t~, 

I •. _.1••· :-,-~!}:'.;. ,..,"('' "' 
----'t ✓- T.1 , -> . '\ ' ,,, ' -'.:-1r - · f' 
I -1 $ 

' • I ,;: 

\';,,,\,s t /. .y•,'i-,\,..; ' ¥; .:::' 

· ,-~~! 0· e =r~:~r · · ... § :::, ,---. --jJ;}:f-f.~.--- f "·' 
l/jf ~-: / ;, , 

~> 
/ 

.:: -I 

, ,,., ;.r1.·_,,.,, A~e-e-Wl.<t..L _,.,o,n«,.•, ,i,d;:1_::,...,~.:;,R 
~"'[ """.<''f"l? '""" A~ J"; /;./ ~ 1 ..<,,;!_ ~ ,yNn,,.,,-:;, 
.. a., ~"'"~1rw.-.: cm:,.,,, ,, .,,.,v_::r """ x,,,r,,&•?.:,, ~-a.;: 

I· ~i~?v ~-
·fl 

t. NASOYA F~~;; USA 0 
.___.. 1 NEW ENGLAND WAY \.:.__y 

.J 

::: 

AYEFl_, MA 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 
PLAN 

2 



" 

GRAPHIC' SCALE .. . ,. "" 
~ 2'"" 

-k<~±~-01 
~~~ ~=·.n-. """ .. 

. ,._ _:::s,r _ 

. }- - ?::.-~"~ri•.-·-

-t- I ~----,7"-,_~-~-:++-:J: ,,, ,..._7------=-.c:.=--~-=-~=~- ~ - :;,, 
,L , 

ZONE: INDUSTRIAL,. AQUIFER PROTECTION, FLOOD PLAIN 

I 50' WH[N A01!mNG ,, ltf510fNTIO.L0,Sl!IICT 

J Pffl 1!Y1AW ~u;noN n.:,A..:I AT \(MT ',OJ,, Of H.(QUIIIL□ oPrN ~PAC[ SH/!,U 0( '"' 

Tl<F fllONT CTll 11Df YI\Jl.D~. Jl.f{lUIRf!} <Jl'UII ~PA!l" -l0\,71l ~ ~ 

~ r,"lK/Nr. nn1umffl• em nv,AW SfITl[1N <1.t ~ fl [MIMffl u~n 

MIN.PAO~INCilff{lt!IRtO 

211.]C.]~F )(15PIIU/1!>0',.F 

11u.<•insr$. L•1>•<<>/l,,Oo~r 
,.u~n,r Xl'oPllLl/lDU~.f 



Town of Ayer 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Department Head Review Summary  
 

Application for Variance – 1 New England Way - Nasoya 

Department Comments 
Town Manager Defer to ZBA 
Board of Health No Issues 
Department of Public Works DPW does not have issues with the height 

at the proposed location. DPW is 
concerned about the encroachment of the 
sewer easement, the actual sewer force 
main location needs to be determined by 
applicant. Also concerned about expansion 
requiring addition sewer flows/loading 
above Nasoya’s approval limits. Also 
concerned expansion must address 
wastewater pretreatment upgrades. 

Police Department  No Comment at this time. 
Fire Department I would recommend we have access to the 

roof of the 75’ building. There should be a 
roof access ladder either from the 30’ of 
58’ roof tops, or a combination of roof 
tops. No other fire department issues or 
recommendations 

Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer No Issues 
Conservation Commission Outside of Conservation Jurisdiction 
Treasurer/Tax Collector Aug. taxes were paid short. Have not seen 

Nov. payment yet but still are processing. 
Statement effective 11/2/22 is attached. 

Town Clerk No issues with this office 
Assessor’s Office No Comment 
Economic & Community Development Require building elevations to assess visual 

impact of 75’ height. Balloon test to 
understand height impact. Insufficient 
information to make recommendation. 

Town Planner I approve this variance request. Nasoya will 
be before the Planning Board for site plan 
review soon. 

 

 

 



11/02/2022 14:22 
24 8bt ier ITOWN OF AYER 

Real Esta t e Tax S t atement 

PARCEL: 0017000018 

LOCATION: 1 NEW ENGLAND WAY 

OWNER: 
NASOYA FOODS USA LLC 
C/O PULMUONE FOODS USA INC 
2 315 MOORE AVENUE 
FULLERTON CA 92833 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

STATUS: 
TOTAL ACRES 
DEFERRED ACRES 
LAND VALUATION 
BUILDING VALUATION 
EXEMPTIONS 
TAXABLE VALUATION 
INTEREST PER DIEM 

DEED DATE: 05 / 11/ 2016 BOOK/PAGE: 67233/207 INTEREST DATE: 

YEAR TYPE 
INST CHARGE 

BILL 

2023 RE-R 
1 COMMERCIAL 

CPA SURCHA 

2 COMMERCIAL 
CPA SURCHA 

GRAND TOTALS 

2178 

BI LLED 

47, 348.82 
1,420 . 46 

48,769.28 

47 , 348 . 81 
1,420.47 

48 , 769 .2 8 

97, 538 .56 

97,538 . 56 

PRIN DUE I NT DUE 

266 . 78 9.52 
1,420 . 46 50.67 

1,687 . 24 60 . 19 

47,348 . 81 
1,420 . 47 

18. 16 
. 54 

48,769 . 28 18 . 70 

50,456.52 78.89 

50,456.52 78 . 89 

I
p 1 
t xtaxstm 

12. 1 20 
. 000 

937,200 
6,044,200 

0 
6, 9 81,400 

1 9 .35 

11/02/2022 

TOTAL DUE 

276.30 
1 , 471 . 13 

1,747.43 

47,366.97 
1,421.01 

48,787 . 98 

50,535.41 

50,535.41 



TOWN OF AYER 
TOWNCL~ 

I J :f}O !!ffL~ 

Town of Ayer 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Public Hearing Notice 

The Ayer ZBA will conduct a remote public hearing at 6:10 PM on Wednesday November 16, 

2022 regarding an application by Jeffery E. Greco and Andrea L. Greco, for property located 

at 37 Sandy Pond Rd. Ayer, MA. The applicant is seeking a Variance pursuant to Ayer Zoning 

Bylaw Section 5.2.1.1, Section 6.2, and 6.3(8) to allow for an existing single family home to 

remain on the property located at 37 Sandy Pond Rd. until a new single family home to be 

constructed on the property is complete with the condition that the existing single family 

home shall be removed prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit by the Town of Ayer 

Building Inspector for the to be constructed single family home. For Zoom/Call-In 

information please contact sb_enQti:@_ayer.ma__._us. or 978-772-8220 x114. 

Advertised November 2, 2022 and November 9, 2022, Lowell Sun. 



Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, PC. 
Thomas A. Gibbons, Esq. 
tgihhonsrwtgihhonsluw.com 
Licensed to practice in MA & NI-I 

Emily R. Langlais, Esq. 
clonglais(i, tgihhonsluw.com 
Licensed to practice in MA 

,, ww. tgibhnnslaw.com 
21 Park Street 

Ayer, MA 01432 
Telephone: (978)772•2284 
Facsimile: (978)772•0802 

October 28, 2022 

Susan Copeland, Town Clerk 
Ayer Town Hall 
I Main Street 
Ayer, MA 01432 

RE: 37 Sandy Pond Road, Ayer, MA 01432 
OUR FILE NO.: 22-8001 

Dear Ms. Copeland, 

Kyle J. Croteau, Esq. 
kcrotcau1a lgibhonslaw .com 
Licensed to practice in MA 

Pursuant to MGL Ch 40A § 15, please accept for filing on behalf of the Ayer Zoning 
Board of Appeals, the application for Jeffrey E. Greco and Andrea L. Greco for a 
variance to allow for an existing single family home to remain on the property until a new 
single family home to be constructed on the property is complete with the condition that 
the existing single family home shall be removed prior to the issuance of an occupancy 
permit by the Town of Ayer Building Inspector for the to be constructed single family 
home at 37 Sandy Pond Road, Ayer, Massachusetts. Please find attached the following 
documentation: 

• An original and a copy of the completed three (3) page application and certified 
list of abutters for a hearing for the Town of Ayer Zoning Board of Appeals and 
thirteen (13) copies of a one (1) page Site Plan. 

• A check in the amount of One Hundred Sixty Five Dollars ($165.00) for filing, 
• A check in the amount of Seventy-Four Dollars ($74.00) for publishing, 

We respectfully request a public hearing before the Zoning Board of Appeals at 
the November 16, 2022 meeting. If you have any questions or concerns regarding this 
matter, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely yr,01ts~ c===: .~ 
~ Gibbons, Esq. 

TAG/df 
\\GLSVR\Officc Shore\LOT AG 2020\ZONJNG\Greco, Andreu (37 Sandy Pond Road, Ayer) #22-800 I CLOSED\ZBA app to city 
letter.doc 



Town of Ayer 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APPLICATION FOR A HEARING 

Name of Applicant: Jeffrey E. Greco and Andrea L. Greco 
(Full Name) 

37 Sandy Pond Road, Ayer, MA 01432 
(Address) 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, P.C. - 978-772-2284 
-·· -

(Phone Number) 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, P.C. - tgibbons@tgibbonslaw.com - --- ----
(Email Address) 

Applicant is: X Owner ___ Tenant __ Licensee __ Prospective Buyer* 
*If you are a tenant, licensee or prospective buyer please include a letter from the property owner 
acknowledging the application with the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

The name and address of each holder or legal title to the land which is the subject of 
this petition (list as it appears on the Deed): 

Jeffrey E. Greco and Andrea L Greco 37 Sandy Pond Rd, Ayer, MA 01432 

location of Property: 

37 Sandy Pond Road, Ayer, MA 01432 

Assessor's Map __ 2_8 __ Parcel __ 9~ Land Size 36,061 sq. ft. 

Zoning District: A-1 (A-21 GR GB DB LI MUT HCS 
Circle One 

Registry of Deeds Book 77328 Page 128 

Aquifer Protection Overlay District ( circle one) Zone I Zone II IN/Al 

2 



The undersigned hereby petitions the Town of Ayer Zoning Board of Appeals to vary the 
terms of the Zoning Bylaws for the following purpose: 

X A VARIANCE from the requirements of the Town of Ayer Zoning Bylaws 

A SPECIAL PERMIT for a specific use which is subject the approval of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

A SPECIAL PERMIT to expand, alter, or change a non-conforming use or 
structure. 

ADMINISTRATIVEAPPEAL(i.e. Building Inspector Decision) 

Did you request a building permit from the Town of Ayer Building Inspector? _N_o __ 

If yes, were you denied a permit by the Town of Ayer Building Inspector? _N_IA __ 
If you were denied a permit, please attach a copy of the decision from Building Commissioner's Office. 

State briefly the reasons for application and include the appropriate citation(s) from 
the Ayer Zoning Bylaw: 

*See attached for response and signature. 

Date: _______ _ Signed by 
(Petitioner) 

(Daytime Phone Number) 

{Email) 

3 



State briefly the reasons for application: 

Seeking a variance from Sections 5.2 1.1. Section 6 .2 , and 6.3(B) to allow for an existing single family home to 

remain on the property located at 37 Sandy Pond Road until a new single family home to be constructed on the 

property is complete with the condition that the existing single family home shall be removed prior to the 

issuance of an occupancy pennit by the Town of Ayer Building Inspector for the to be constructed single family 

home. 

Date: ·c/4) )/.+J 
l 

Signed br L,LI/ -l ?l ~n-a-
c.::.:.- • - (Petitioner) ' 

Check List: 

c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons, PC • 21 Park Street. Ayer. MA 01432 

(Street Address) 
c/o Law Office of Thomas A. Gibbons. P.C • 978-772-2284 

(Daytime Telephone Number) 

Completed application 

Two checks made payable to "Town of Ayer" in the amount of 
$165.00 & $ 74.00. 

Six (6) copies of the certified plot plan (8 ½ x 11 or 11 x 17) 

List of abutters Certified by the Assessors office 

Completed certified mail documents (certified mailing to be done by 
applicant and copied to ZBA's Office Manager along with receipts 
before the scheduled Public Hearing) 



TnlS PLAN IS NOT TO BE USED 
FCR THE ESTA3USHMENT OF 
PROPERTY L!}<ES, ERECTION 
OF FENCES. LA~DSCA!'ING 

Certified Plot Plan 
37 Sandy Pond Roa,/ Ayer, 1Hass. 

STREET TOWN 

David E. Ross Associates, Inc. 
5 LANCASi~R COUNT!' ROAD - P 0. BOX 795 - H.IR'IARO, MASS 01451 

(978) 772-6232 FAX 772-5258 

SANDY poND~~A!> 
\ 

x.House 

R.D. Kanniard 

(To be 
~ Removed) 

2 ~ --r.C~. 
SURVEYOR d 

10 / s /z.t>z t 

Doniel Picard & 
Luanne Picard 
{BK. 72138-104) 

Homes, Inc. 
(Bl(. 48915-5071 

;:f:J 
LOT.I~ ----~ 

b\~ I 
~Detail~ 

Proposed House per p ion 
b/ Damon UcOuaid Ar ch i t ect 

doted 9/ 07/2021 

I .. 66.5' 

·1 
Proposed 

~ 
b_ 

House 

l 

Proposed Lot Co ver oqe= 7. 3 ± % 

76.£. 

Zoning Classification: Residence A-2 
Scale: 1 "=40' 

"'l_ Former 
""er::, Shed 

· ,s.. Locutions 

A 
g.....--1]----, 

OcJnoid Belter· 
{BK. 14855-489) 

~.Sed 

[ _____ _ 
r -

U Hof1se I I J ~ / , :,,_ 

i~ 

LOT2 

,~ 
•-.: 
"• .,. 

BK. 77328-128 
Pl. No.684 of 2021 

36,061 Sq. Ft. 

Spencer Kinq 
{BK. 72525-i29 

John C. Conway. 
Jr. 

{BK. 6!059-212) 

------ - ---
40-Foot TVide 
Right of fVay 

100.co' 

MASSACHUSETTS BAY TRANSPORT AUTHORITY 

I certify that the proposed house is located on the lo t as shown. I further certify that 
the proposed house, i f construc ted in the location shown would conform with the front, 
side and rear yard setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaws in eflect at this time. 
I further certify that the proposed house is located wi thin Flood Zone ")(' (unshaded) per 
Flood Insurance Rote Map (FIRM) for the Town of Ayer, Community Panel No.250180 0272 
£ dated June 4, 2010. 

REFERENcEs: Job #33393, L-14158, L-14064 PLAN No. S-15108 



Town of Ayer 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Department Head Review Summary  
 

Application for Variance – 37 Sandy Pond Road 

Department Comments 
Town Manager Defer to ZBA 
Board of Health No issues as long as the house has town 

sewer and town water 
Department of Public Works No issue from DPW. 
Police Department  No Comment at this time. 
Fire Department No Fire Dept. issues 
Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer It is my opinion that it is not in the best 

interest for the Town to approve this 
variance, as the possibility exists that the 
construction of the new home does not 
get completed. The town will be stuck with 
2 homes on 1 lot. 

Conservation Commission Out of Commissions Jurisdiction  
Treasurer/Tax Collector Taxes are current 
Town Clerk No issue with this office. 
Assessor’s Office No Comment 
Economic & Community Development No Comment 
Town Planner Acceptable given the circumstances. 

 

 

 



Town of Ayer 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Ayer Town Hall 
1 Main Street 

Ayer, MA 01432 
 

 
Wednesday, October 19, 2022 

Remote Participation Open Session Meeting Minutes 
 

Present: Samuel A. Goodwin, Chair; Michael Gibbins, Vice-Chair; Ron Defilippo, Clerk; Jess Gugino; John Ellis 
 
Also Present: Carly Antonellis, Assistant Town Manager; Samantha Benoit, Administrative Coordinator 
 
Call to Order: S. Goodwin called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. He stated that due to the ongoing COVID-19 
Pandemic, in accordance with Chapter 22 of the Acts of 2022, suspending certain provisions of the Open 
Meeting Law (OML), public bodies otherwise governed by the OML are temporarily relieved from the 
requirement that meetings be held in public places, open and physically accessible to the public, so long as 
measures are taken to ensure public access to the bodies' deliberations "through adequate, alternative 
means." This meeting will be live on Zoom. The public may participate remotely by joining Zoom (Meeting ID# 
857 9728 7177) or by calling (312-626-6799). For additional information about remote participation, please 
contact Carly Antonellis, Assistant Town Manager at atm@ayer.ma.us or 978-772-8220 ext. 100 prior to the 
meeting. 
 
Approval of the Agenda: Motion was made by M. Gibbons to approve the agenda as written.  
Seconded by J. Ellis.  
Roll Call Vote: M. Gibbins, aye; R. Defilippo, aye; J. Gugino, aye; John Ellis, aye; S. Goodwin, aye.  
Motion Passed (5-0) 
 
Continued Public Hearing-Application for a Comprehensive Permit (MGL 408, Sections 20-23) Neighborhood 
of Affordable Housing, Inc. 65 Fitchburg Road (Filed June 24, 2022) 
 
Jim Thorne of Green International, presented the comments from the peer review. All peer reviews were 
completed at the time of the meeting except the for the Lighting. The information for Lighting was received 
the week prior and there was not enough time to review. This is just a summary of the comments, the next 
meetings can go more in depth. 
 
Sergio Musto of Green International presented the comments on the Traffic Study. The Traffic Study used 
industry standards for the assessment, however Green International noted that the site distance needs to be 
included on the plans. The parking is below what is laid out in Ayer’s Zoning Bylaws, and a waiver would be 
needed. The also commented that the intersection of Fitchburg Road and Groton School Road would have an 
increase in traffic by 33%, and the addition of a signal should be considered. The Applicant should also confirm 
if a sidewalk and a crosswalk will be added. The number of ADA parking spots also needs to be indicated. 
 
J. Thorne recommends that the Applicant coordinate with MassDOT and see if a special permit will be needed. 
The Applicant should also coordinate with the DPW for sewer flows and determine if the system can handle 
the increased usage.  



Green International also noted that the western portion of the property encroaches on the neighboring 
property, and the Applicant should coordinate with the owner. Talks should continue with Fire and Safety 
regarding hydrant placement, and the possible addition of valves. 
Snow storage will also need to be addressed to prevent parking loss. The drainage plans will have to be 
updated to include stormwater now that more sidewalks have been added. The drainage pipes found in the 
plan to not comply with the Town’s regulations. Pipes should be designed for 25 years of use, the plan 
submitted accounts for 10 years of use. 
The issue of the flood line will most likely be addressed by the Conservation Commission, but it is noted that 
there could be an issue. 
The Applicant has submitted many waivers, Green International cannot comment on the waivers and leaves 
the final decision up to the Board, but they are willing to discuss the waivers. 
The rest of the comments are concerned with some inconsistencies found in the plans. The Applicant has been 
informed of the comments. 
 
S. Goodwin asked when the applicant was given the comments. 
C. Antonellis sent the comments on the Friday before the meeting. 
S. Goodwin asked if the Applicant was able to review the comments. 
 
Stephanie Kiefer of NOAH said they have given the comments a preliminary review. She would like to set-up a 
workshop with with Green International, BSC, and C. Antonellis in order address some of the minor issues on 
the plans. She found nothing to be insurmountable. 
 
S. Goodwin asked if NOAH had any rebuttals to the comments. 
S. Kiefer believes Green International has made a working document with the comments, and there will be 
significant back forth with written responses and updated plans. 
S. Goodwin noted that all comments are then open until answered. 
S. Kiefer wished to confirm for the record that plans have been updated after the August 16th hearing and 
include the Fire Truck turning radius. The civil and landscaping plans have also been updated on October 12th. 
 
S. Goodwin asked where Green International got the documents they reviewed. 
J. Thorne says they received documents from C. Antonellis and the from the Town of Ayer’s website. The 
revised plans were received last week and therefore there was not enough time to review them. It is noted 
that revised plans are reviewed after comments have been addressed. 
 
Taylor Dowdy of BSC stated that the revised plans that were submitted were created based on the Town’s 
comments. He felt the Traffic Study comments will be easy to address. There are six ADA parking spots shown 
on the plans, and he believes that is the minimum requirement. The old MassDOT project, as mentioned 
previously has been inactive since 2014. An access permit from MassDOT will be needed but local approval 
must come first. Sewer flow is currently being calculated. The western encroachment is something that need 
to be figured out by the current property owners prior to NOAH taking procession of the property. The snow 
storage should have been included in the stormwater plans; Taylor says he will confirm. The flood plain is 
shown using GIS because there is no elevation data available at this time. It does not make sense currently to 
find the elevation data since this is an intermittent stream. 
 
J. Ellis asked for clarification on the updated plans. Green International’s do not seem to be reflected in the 
updated plans. 
T. Dowdy explained that the updated plans are based on the Town’s comments and the site walk. 
 
S. Goodwin asked when the final drawings of the plan will be complete. 



S. Kiefer explained that these are preliminary drawings, a full set of plans can be a condition of completion. All 
plans can be updated at this time, they are not the full design plans. Full plans will be submitted with the 
building permit. 
Paul Haverty further explained that preliminary plans are what is required in a 40B, and the Board would make 
their decision based on these preliminary plans, however full plans are required before a building permit can 
be issued. 
 
S. Goodwin noted that with the revised plans some of Green International’s comments are invalid. 
P. Haverty said that some of Green International's comments have been answered with the revised plans. It is 
not unusual for there to be additional reviews of the plans. 
T. Dowdy reiterated it is very common on 40B projects to have multiple reviews of the plans. As it stands 
responses are already being formulated for Green’s comments. 
S. Kiefer reiterated that having all parties work together will allow for the project to move forward and have 
all have concerns addressed. 
 
S. Goodwin asked what the timeframe would be address the comments and revise the drawings. 
T. Dowdy believes it would take about two weeks. 
J. Thorne believes that Green would need an additional week to review and back check the comments. 
S. Goodwin noted that the next meeting is November 16, 2022. 
S. Kiefer felt it was reasonable that they would be ready by the next meeting. 
 
J. Gugino asked when the conservation review needed to be addressed. 
P. Haverty stated that a local waiver is needed then the review should be done now, otherwise it can be done 
later. 
S. Goodwin asked when the Conservation Commission should be involved. 
P. Haverty stated it would be after the applicant filed a notice of intent. 
 
J. Ellis and S. Goodwin asked how the list of waivers relates the peer review, and if the waivers would be 
granted after the peer review was complete. 
P. Haverty confirmed that the waivers would be addressed after the peer review was complete. 
J. Ellis asked if the list of waivers would be need for the next meeting. 
S. Goodwin and P. Haverty said that waivers are handled at the end of the process and will not be discussed at 
the next meeting. 
 
J. Gugino asked for guidance on the dealing with the multiple zones found in the parcel. 
S. Goodwin believes that the 40B project overrides the zoning. 
P. Haverty explains that it does not override zoning but rather establishes that the need for affordable housing 
outweighs the local zoning requirements. 
 
A motion was made by S. Goodwin to continue the Public Hearing-Application for a Comprehensive Permit 
(MGL 408, Sections 20-23) Neighborhood of Affordable Housing, Inc. 65 Fitchburg Road (Filed June 24, 2022) 
until November 16, 2022, at 6:00pm via Zoom. 
Seconded by M. Gibbons. 
Roll Call Vote: M. Gibbins, aye; R. Defilippo, aye; J. Gugino, aye; John Ellis, aye; S. Goodwin, aye.  
Motion Passed (5-0) 
 
R. Defilippo would like some clarification as to why $400,000 is being requested from the Community 
Preservation at the Fall Town Meeting. 



S. Goodwin clarified that the funds are to show the State that the Town supports this project. Without the 
Town’s support it will be more difficult to get State funding. 
Janet Providakes of the Community Preservation Committee further reiterated that these funds will show that 
the Town supports the need for affordable housing. Also, if for whatever reason the project does not go 
forward, the money will return to the CPA. 
R. Defilippo says it sounds like we must pay for some of this project and does not recall having to do so with 
past 40B projects. 
J. Providakes says that CPA fund have been used in the past for 40B projects as leverage. 
 
S. Goodwin asked for the total cost of the proposed project. 
S Kiefer believes that the cost of the project is 30 – 32 million dollars. 
Annika Lambert from NOAH clarified that 32 million dollars is for Phase I of the project, both phases would be 
closer to 60 million dollars. 
S. Goodwin further explained that the $400,000 demonstrates to the State that Town is in support of this 
project. 
 
R. Defilippo asked who ultimately owns this property and receives the rents. 
C. Antonellis reminded the Board that NOAH is a non-profit entity. 
R. Defilippo asked is that meant they do not have to pay any taxes on the property, and therefore the Town 
gets nothing from this project, beyond getting affordable housing. 
 
M. Gibbons noted that while this helpful information and thanked J. Providakes for her explanation, this 
matter of $400,000 is issue to be taken up at Town Meeting. 
J. Gugino also explained that CPA funds are State matched, and therefore not all the funds come from the 
residents. 
J. Providakes also explained during the CPA application process NOAH listed all the other grants they have 
applied for and received for this project. 
 
R. Defilippo noted that if this project was refused and an Unfriendly 40B project came in then at least they 
would have to pay for the whole of the project and must pay taxes. 
P. Haverty clarified that some Unfriendly 40B projects are non-profit. He also noted that the Community 
Preservation Act requires a portion of its funds to be spent on affordable housing. 
S. Kiefer explained that all 40B projects, wither for-profit or non-profit must have a recognized subsidy.  
Phil Giffee from NOAH also noted that not all 40B are equal, and this $400,000 will help a lot in the eyes of the 
State. 
Pauline Conley, a resident, also noted that the Willows project had CPA funds contributed. 
 
J. Ellis made a motion to accept the August 31, 2022, meeting minutes as written. Seconded by M. Gibbins. 
Roll Call Vote: M. Gibbins, aye; R. Defilippo, aye; J. Gugino, aye; John Ellis, aye; S. Goodwin, aye.  
Motion Passed (5-0) 
 
J. Ellis made a motion to accept the September 21, 2022, meeting minutes as written. Seconded by M. 
Gibbins. 
Roll Call Vote: M. Gibbins, aye; R. Defilippo, aye; J. Gugino, aye; John Ellis, aye; S. Goodwin, aye.  
Motion Passed (5-0) 
 
Motion to Adjourn by S. Goodwin. Seconded by M. Gibbins. 
Roll Call Vote: M. Gibbins, aye; R. Defilippo, aye; J. Gugino, aye; John Ellis, aye; S. Goodwin, aye.  
Motion Passed (5-0) 



 
Meeting Adjourned at 7:16pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes Submitted by Samantha Benoit, Administrative Coordinator 
 
 
Date Minutes Approved by the ZBA: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature of ZBA Clerk, Indicating Approval: _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 


